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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of RGE Constructions and Development Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RGE Constructions and Development
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 Match 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Fquity, and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements including a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, its loss,
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these tequirements and the
ICAD’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is tesponsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report 2024-25, but does not
include the financial statements and out auditot’s report thereon. The Annual Repott is expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditot's repott.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with cur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent




In connection with out audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appeats to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s repott, we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other
information is obtained at the date of this auditot’s repott.

Management’s and Boatd of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of
Ditectors. The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the matters
stated in section 134(5) of the Act with tespect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comptehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This tesponsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively forensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting recotds, relevant to the preparation and ptesentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud ot error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and the Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concetn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease opetations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Ditectors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 2
whole ate free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
repott that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a matetial
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud ot error and are considered
material if, individually ot in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exetcise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion.




The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from errot, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, ot the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as 4 going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements ot, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
ate based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s teport. However,
fature events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 2 going
concetn.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undetlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it ptobable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those chatged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
televant cthical requitements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

The audit of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 was cartied out and reported
by HRA & Co. vide their unmodified audit report dated 10 April 2024, whose audit repott has
been furnished to us by the management of the Company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this mattet.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in tetms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A”,
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As requited by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief wete necessary for the purposes of out audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in
the paragraph i(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comptehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this report ate in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

e. On the basis of the written tepresentations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act

f. The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting undet Section 143(3)(b) of
the Act and paragraph i(vi) below on teporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014;

g With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give out
separate report in “Annexure B”.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repott in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the Company did not pay any remunetation to its directots during the year

i. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repott in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

() The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements — Refer Note 28 of the financial statetnents
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The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
detivative contracts;

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from botrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaties”), with the understanding, whether
tecorded in writing ot otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly
lend ot invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Uliimate Beneficiaries.

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person ot entity, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend ot invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaties”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢. Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and approptiate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i} and (i) of Rule 11(e) contain any
material misstatement

The Company has not declared and paid dividend duting the yeat.

As stated in note 39 to the financial statements and based on our examination which
included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year ended on 31 March
2025, has used accounting software(s) for maintaining its books of account which has
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility at application level as well as database
level and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software(s) except one software where audit trial {edit log) facility at
database level was not available. However, recording of audit trail (edit logs) can be
disabled using restricted privileged rights for direct data changes at database level.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come actoss any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with. Furthermote, the audit trail has been preserved by
the Company as per the statutoty requirements for record retention, except that the




audit trail at the database level for the Company has not been preserved in the
accounting softwate for the period from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024, as applicable.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants

005975N
New Dsafhi
Praveen Keshav

Partner
Membership No.: 535106

UDIN: 25535106BMKQBK1201

Place: Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditot's Repott to the members of the
Company on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, based on the audit procedures
petformed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Financial Statements of the Company and
taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and other
records examined by us in the notmal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report

that

)  In respect of the Company’s Propetty, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets:

(a)

(b)

©

@

©

@ @

®)

{(A) The Company has maintained proper recotds showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and the situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has no intangible assets during the year.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, the Company’s management caftries out
physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment once in a year. In our opinion,
the frequency of physical verification is teasonable having regard to the size of the
company and nature of its assets. As explained to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed by the management on such physical verification.

The Company does not own any immovable propetty. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3()(c) of the Otder is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets
during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the
Otrder is not applicable to the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year, except for goods in transit. In our opinion, the coverage and
ptocedute of such verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies
of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on physical
verification. Discrepancies noticed on physical vetification have been properly dealt
with in the books of accounts.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits/ wotking capital limits in
excess of Rs. 5 crore by banks ot financial institutions on the basis of security of cutrent
assets during any point of time of the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii}(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
vetification carried out by us, during the year, the Company has not made any investments
or granted any loans ot advances in the natute of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships ot any other parties. However, the company has provided cotporate guarantee
and given security during the year, in tespect of which the requisite information is as below:

During the year, the Company has provided cotporate guarantee and given security as
pet the details given below:

(% in thousands)
Particulats Guarantee Security
(vefer note 28) | (refer note 10)

Aggregate amount for which guarantee
provided and security given during the
year

Others: -
- Fellow Subsidiary Companies 95,00,000.00 23,25,512.96

(% in thousands
Particulars Guarantee Security
(refer note 28) | (refer note 10)

Balance outstanding as at 31 March 2025
in respect of above cases

Othets: -
- Fellow Subsidiary Companies 95.,00,000.00 23,25,512.96

According to the information, explanation and tepresentation provided to us and based on
the vetification carried out by us, the terms and conditions of the corporate guarantee
provided, and secutity given ate, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iii)(c), 3(ii)(d),
3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Accotding to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, in our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions
of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and investment
made, and guarantees and secutity provided by it, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits and there are no amounts which have been
considered as deemed deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3{v} of the Otder is not applicable to the Company.
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The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business
activity. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and
services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues outstanding of Income-
tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added tax, Cess on
account of any dispute are as follows:

Statement of Disputed Dues

Name of the [Nature | Amount [Amount Financial year | From where
statue of dues |(® in [paid undeq to which | dispute is pending

thousands) [protest (X in] amount

thousands) | relates

The Finance | Service | 10,700.00 | 2,177.46 | 2010-11  to | CESTAT, Chennai
Act, 1994 Tax 2014-15
The Finance | Service | 6,600.00 667.31 2015-16  to | CESTAT, Chennai
Act, 1994 Tax 2017-18
Tamil Nadu | Goods | 1,80,000.00( 20,309.08 | 2017-18  to | Commissioner
Goods  and | and 2019-20 Appeal -11,
Services Tax, | Service Chennai
2017 Tax
Tamil Nadu | Goods | 7,000.00 701.26 2019-20 Additional
Goods  and | and Commissionet
Setvices Tax, | Service {Appeals), Chennai
2017 Tax

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961} which have not been recorded in the books of

accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the verification
cartied out by us, the Company has delayed certain repayment of principal and interest
thereon for its non-convertible debentures duting the year. However, there are no delays as
on balance sheet date. Details for delay in the repayment during the year is given below:
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Nature of | Name of [ Amount not | Whether No of days

Borrowings Lender paid on due [ principal or | delay up to
dates interest date of

payment

Non-Convertible | Asia Real | 701.52 Interest 77

Debentures Estate

Non-Convertible | Asia Real | 3,106.74 Interest 46

Debentures Estate

Non-Convertible | Asia Real | 3,014.76 Interest 16

Debentures Estate

Non-Convertible | Asia Real | 1,02,962.50 Principal 471

Debentures Estate

Non-Convertible | Asia Real | 1,50,000.00 Principal 382

Debentures Estate

According to the information and explanations given to us including confirmations
received from banks and other lenders and written representation received from the
management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that
the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures petformed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, clause 3(ix){(e) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of
the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Accotding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally)
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the
Otder is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
petiod covered by our audit.

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for
the period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the written
tepresentation made to us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it
Accordingly, teporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions entered into by the Company with the related patties ate in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act, wherever applicable. Futther, the detils of such related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the
Companies Act 2013.

The Company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit. Accordingly,
clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the informaton and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its directots or persons connected with them and
accordingly, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not requited to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a) and (b) of the
Otrder is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company and there are no Core Investment
in the Group. Companies. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (c) and (d) of
the Ordet is not applicable to the Company.




{xvi)

(xx)

The Company has incurred cash losses of T 36,989.40 thousand in the cutrent financial year
and had incutred cash losses amounting to ¥ 1,99,303.80 thousand in the immediately
pteceding financial year.

Accotding to the information and explanation given to us, there has been a resignation of
the statutory auditors duting the year and based on our communication with management
and outgoing auditors, there have been no issues, objections or concerns raised by the
outgoing auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and out knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a petiod of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that out reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a petiod of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

The Section 135 of the Companies Act with regard to corporate social responsibility is not
applicable to the Company Accordingly, teporting under clause 3(xx)(a) & (b)of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

For Agatwal Prakash & Co.
Chattered Accountants

Fitm's Registration Number.: 005975N
X

005975N ||
New Delhi f2/
Praveen Keshav A
Pattner
Membetship No.: 535106

UDIN: 25535106BMKQBK1201

Place: Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

With reference to the Annexure B refetred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the members
of the Company on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 of even date.

Independent’s Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of financial statements of
RGE Constructions and Development Private Limited as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company fot the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of directots is tesponsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting ctiteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAT”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that wete operating effectively for ensuring
the ordetly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and etrots, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and petform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial repotting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial conttols over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assesstent of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
O eror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis fot our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial teporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
faitly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;(2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inhetent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inhetent limitations of intetnal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to etror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future petiods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial repotting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, ot that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting wete
opetating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal financial control over financial
teporting critetia established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAL

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chattered Accountants

Praveen Keshav
Partner

Membership No.: 535106
UDIN: 25535106BMKQBK 1201

Place: Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025



RGE Constructions and Development Private Limited
CIN: UTHOITN2007PTC064100

Al amounss are in & thousands, unless otherwise stated

Balance Sheert as at MNotes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 6 157.00 224,13
(b) Financial assets
Other financial asscts TA 1,973.22 83.00
{c} Non-Current tax assets, net 5 1,805.81 1,078.56
{d} Other Non-Current Assets 9A 39,450.40 54,791.53
Total Non Current Assets 43,386.43 65,177.22
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 10 23,25,512.96 23,25,470.45
{b) Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11 T6.94 1,675.52
Other financial assets 7B 660714 15,850.50
{c} Orther current assets 9B 1,89,782.48 1,69,215.01
Total Cucrent Assets 25,16,059.52 25,12,211.48
TOTAL OF ASSETS 25,59,445.95 25,77,388.70
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
() Equity Share Capital 12 6,095.28 6,095,238
(b} Other Equity 13 12,73,905.98 (15,13,211.24)
Total Equity 12,80,001.26 (15,07,115.96)
Non Current Liabilides
{a) Financia] Liabilisies
Borowings 14A 1,98,704.00 1.73,540.61
Other financial lizbilites 15A 1,451.22
(b) Provisions 15A 672.50 -
() Other Non Current Liabilities 17A 40,413.06 8029678
Total Non Cucrent Liabilites 2,41,240.78 2,53,837.39

Current Liabilities
fa} Financial Liabiliges

Borrowings 14B 7,82,593.16 ZHAB7071 38
T'tade payables 18
- wtal ouestanding dues of micre aud small enterpdses 4,184.05 12,088.08

- total cutstanding ducs f creditors other than

1.18,177.76 1,36,906.92
miceo and small entmprises
rher financial liabilities 15 1,10,066.92 773, 163.55
{b) Provisivns 16B 7.35 -
(&) Other Current Liabilities 178 23 174.67 21,437.34
Tartal Current Liabilities 10,38,203.91 38,30,667.27
TOTAL OF EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 25,59,445.95 25,77,388.70
Sunumiary of matertal accounting policies 5
The accompanying notes arc integral parr of the finanoal stacements.
This is the balance sheet referred to in our reporc of even date,
For Agarwal Prakash & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Fiom's Registeation Number: (659750 wpﬁ
Praveen Keshav \. éﬁek Rajninath Surve Surender Kumar
Partner Ihrecror Director
Membership No. 535106 DIN: 10619417 DIN: 10616796

Place: Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025



RGE Constructions and Development Private Limited
CIN: UZ010TTN2007P TC064100

Al amounts are in T thousands, unless otherwise stated

Staternent of Profit and Loss for the year ended Notes 31 March 2025 31 Mairch 2024

Income

Revenue from operations 19 6,250.00 -

Ocher income 20 13,850.45 10,419.53
Total of Income 20,100.45 10,419.53
Expenses

Cost of revenue 21 493826 -

Employee benefits expense 22 14,749.14 -

Finance costs 23 50,059.63 70,687.50

Depreciation expense 24 67.13 136.56

Other expenses 25 0,435.38 1,39,035.77
Total of Expenses 76,249.54 2,015,859.89
Loss before tax (56,149.09) (1,99,440.36)
Tax Expense 20

Current tax

Deterred tax - B
Laoss for the year {56,149.09) (1,99,440.36)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year {56,149.09) (1,99,440.36)
Earnings per equity share: 27
Equity shares of face value of T 10 each

Basic (2 per share) {0.12) (1.20)

BDiluted (X per share) 0.12) (1.200

Summary of matetial accounting policies 5

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Praveen Keshav

Partner
Membeeship No. 535106

Place: Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Ditectors

>

Abbishek Rajninath Surve Surender Kumar
Dhicector Director
DIN: 10619417 DIN: 10616796



RGE Constructions and Development Private Limited
CIN: UWITN2007PTC064100

Afl amounts ate in T thousands, unless otherwise stated

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 Macch 2025 31 March 2024
Cash flows from opetating activities
Loss before tax (56,149.09) {1,99.440.36)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense 67.13 136.56
Finance costs 50,059.63 70,687.56
Provision for gratuity and leave encashment 679.85 -
Interest income on bank depaosits (480.4% (1,019.15)
Interest on income tax refund {5,630.42) -
Liabilides written back (5,975.36) -
Financial guarantee income (271.95) -
Operating loss before working capital changes and other adjusiments (17,700.70) {1,29,635.39)
Working capital changes and other adjustments:
Inventories 4251} -
Current & non-current other assests (5,226.34) 1,04,268.21
Current & non-current other financial assests (2,285.41) 15.30
Trade payables (26,633.19) (1.11,247.00)
Current & non-current other liabilines (32,171.03) 15,722.14
Current & non-current other financial liabilities {38,318.64) (1,07,252.06)
Cash used in operating activities (1,22,377.82) (2,28,128.80)
Income tax refund, net 13,903.17 -
Net cash used in opetating activities (A) (1,08,474.65) {2,28,128.80)
Cash flow from investing activities
Invesunent in fixed deposits - (o17.24)
Proceeds on macurity of fixed deposits 15,041.47
Interest received from fixed deposits 1,289.52 1,019.15
Net Cash generated from Investing Activities (B) 16,330.99 101.91
Cash flow from financing activities: (refer note 42)
Issue of Non-convertible debentures - 2,86,931.27
Repayments of Non-convertble debentures (2,52,962.50) -
Proceeds from inter-corporate borrowings 7,82,593.16 -
Repayment of inter-corparate botrowings (2,45,937.10) -
Interest paid on debentures (1,93,128.48) {70),687.56)
Net Cash generated from financing acdvities (C) 20,565.08 2,16,243.71
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+() (1,578.58) (11,783.18)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 1,675.52 13,458.70
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 96.94 1,675.52
Cash and cash equivalent comprises of (refer note 11):
Balances with banks in current accounts 290 1,673,106
Cash in hand 88.04 2.42
96.94 1,675.52

Note :- The "Statemeat of Cash Flow" has heen prepared as per the [ndirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flow™,

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial staternents.
This is the statement of cash flows referred w in 0wt report of even date.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 00)5975N
) §

3
S
0059750 )5
New Dealhi /©

Praveen Keshav

Pactner
Membership Na. 535106

Place: Diethi
Date: 27 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Diicector
DIN: 10619417

Abhishek Rajninath Susrve

o

Sure t Kumar
Dvirector
DIN: 10616796



RGE Constructions and Development Private Limited

CIN: UTHMOTITN2MTPTCO64100

Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31 March 2025

A. Equity Share capital*

Al arnounts ate in T thousands, unless otherwise stared

Amount

Particulars Wo. of shares
Balance as at 01 April 2023 6,009,528 6,003.28
Add: issned during the year _ _
Balance as at 31 March 2024 6,09,528 6,095.28
Add: issued dunng the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 6,09,528 6,095.28

B. Ocher Equity®*

Equity Component of Compound Financial Instruments
Equity Fully and Optionally
. Component of Compolsurily Redeemable Retained
Parsiculars Corporate Convertible Convertible Earnings Total
Guarantee Debentures Debentures
{FCCD) {ORCD)

Balance as at 01 April 2023 95,476.31 16,55,486.80 1,73,513.17 {32,38,24715) (13,13,770.87)

Loss for the yeac - - (1,99,440.36) {1,9%,440.36)

Balance as at 31 March 2024 95,476.31 16,55,486.80 1,73,513.17 (34,37,687.51) {(15,13,211.23)

Transferred 1o Retained Earnings {95.476.31) - 9547651 -

Issued duting the year - 28,43,266.30 - - 28,43,266.30

Loss for the year - - - (56,149.09) {56,149.09)

Balance as at 31 March 2025 - 44,98,753.10 1,73,513.17 {33,98,360.29) 12,73,905.98

*Refer Note - 12 for details
¥ Refer Note - 13 for details

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial staternents.

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registtadon Numbep:

Praveen Keshav
Parmer
Membership No. 535106

Place: Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025

005975N %
New Delhi /&

For and on behalf of the Board of Digectors

Direcror

DIN: 10619417

Abhishek Rajninath Sutve

7

Surend umat
Director
BIN: 10616796




RGE Constructions and Development Private Limited
CIN: UZ70HITN2007PTC064100
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025
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51

52

Nature of principal activities

RGE Constructions and Development Private Limited (‘the Company?) having CIN: U70101TN2007PTC064100 was incorporated on
25 June 2007 and is engaged in the business of real estate and other related and ancillary activities. The Company is domiciled in India
and its registered office is situated at No.181/183, Near Vels University 200 Feet Pallavaram, Thoraipakkam Radial Road, Zamin
Paltavaram, Chengalper Distrct , Kanchipuram, Tamil Nadu, Tadia - 600043

General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements of the Company have beea prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards as notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCAY)), a5 amended and other related provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting
policies during the periods presented.

The financial statements are presented in [ndian Rupees (TNR’ or ‘¥) which is the functional currency of the Company and all values are
rounded to the nearest millions upto nwo place of decimal, except where otherwise indicated.  0.00 represents value below less than 4
digits.

Eotity specific disclosuce of material accounting policies where Ind AS permits optiens is disclosed heceunder.

The Company has assessed the materality of the accounting poticy information which involves exercising judgements and considering
both qualitative and quantirative factors by taking into account not only the size and nature of the item or condition but also the
characteristics of the transactions, events or conditions that could make the information more likely to mmpact the decisions of the users
of the financial statements.

Company's conclusion that an accounting policy is immaterial does not affect the disclosures requirements set out in the accouning
standards.

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where 4 newly-issued Accounting Standard is initially adopred or a revision to
an existing Accounting Standard equires a change in the Accounting Policy hitherto adopted.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 May
2025. The revision to financial statements is permitted by Board of Directors after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of
regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Ace.

Recent accounting pronouncements

" Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notfies new standards or amendments to the existing scandards under Companies (ladian

Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended 31 March 2025, MCA notified new accounting standaed
Ind AS 117- Insurance Contracts, which has no impact on the company financial statements. Further the MCA has made certain
amendments to Ind A5 116- Leases, in particularly related to sale and lease back transactions, which has an applicability from 1 April
2024, and has no significant impact on financial statements,

On 7 May 2025, MCA notifies the amendmeats to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchaage Rates. These amendments aim
1o provide clearer guidance on assessing currency exchangeability and estmating exchange rates when currencies are not readily
exchangeable. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025. The Company is currently assessing
the probable impact of these amendments on its financial statements.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have beea prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial
liabilities and share based payments which are measure at fair values as explained in relevant accouating policies. Fair valuations related to
financial assets and financial liabilities are categorised into level 1, level 2 and level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable.

Summary of material accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases summarised below. These
were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statemeats.

Current versus non-current classification

For the purpose of Current / Non-Cutrent classification, the Company has reckoned its normal operating cycle as twelve months based
on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets or inventories for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents.

Inventories
Land other than that transferred to real estate evelopment is valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.




RGE Constructions and Development Private Limited
CIN: UTM0ITN2007PT C064100
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

5.3

5.4

Real estate properties {developed and under development) includes cost of land under development, wternal and external development
costs, construction costs, and development/ construction materials, borrowing costs and related overhead costs and is valued at lower of
cost or net realizable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and estimated
costs of necessary to make the sale.

Construction/ development material is valued at lower of cost and ner realisable value, Cost comprises of purchase price and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and conditon.

Revenue recogniton
Revenue is recognised whea control is transferred and is accounted net of rebate and taxes. The Company applies the reveane
recognition criteria to each nature of the revenue transaction as set out below.

Revenwe from sate of propertics

Revenue from sale of properties is recognized when the performance obligations are essentally complete and credit risks have been
significandy eliminated. The performance obiigations are considered to be complete when control over the property has been transferred
to the buyer i.e. offer for possession (possession request letter) of properties have been issued to the customers and substantal sales
consideration is received from the customers.

The Company considers the terms of the contract aad its customary business practices 1o determine the trapsaction price. The
transaction price is the amouat of consideraton to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferdng property to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes). The consideration promised in a contract
with a customer may include fixed consideration, variable consideration (if reversal is less likely in future), or both.

For each performance obligation identified, the Company determines at coneract inception whether it satisfies the performance
obligation over time or satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time. If an entity does not satisfy a performance obligation over
time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time. A receivable is recognised by the Company when the control is
transferred as this is the case of point in time recognition where consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is
required.

Whea either party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a contract asset or a conteact
liability, depending on the relationship between the endity’s performance and the customer's payment.

The costs estimates are reviewed periodically and effect of any change in such estimate is recognized in the period such changes ate
determined. However, when the total estimated cost exceeds total expected revenues from the contracts, the loss is recognized
immediately.

Operations and maintenance inconie

locome arising from billing of maintenance charges to tenants/customers is recognised in the period in which the services are being
rendered. A receivable is recognised by the Company when the services are rendered as this is the case of poiat in time recognition
where consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required. No significant element of financing is deemed present
as the sales are either made with 2 nil credit term or with a credit period of 0-90 days. Further, the Company considers the rerms of the
contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitfled in exchange for the services, excluding amouars collected on behalf of third parties (For
examples, indirect taxes).

Service revenue
Other operating income is recognised as and when services are completely rendered and right to receive money has been established,
except in cases where ultimate collection is considered doubtful,

Interest income
Interest income 1§ recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate {EIR} method.

Contracts avsets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by
trapsferring services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract fabilitier

A contract liabiliey is the obligation to trausfer services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from the

customer. If & customer pays consideration before the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized
when the payment is made. Coateact Habilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

o it
All financial assets (except trade receivables)
of the financial asset is also adjusted.

ly at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition



RGE Constructions and Development Private Limited
CIN: U70101TN2007PT-C064100
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025
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(D) Debt instrumentrs at amortised cost — A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are
met:

- The asset is held within 2 business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows: and

- Contracmual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

After mitial measurement, such financial assets are subsequendy measured ar amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method.

(i) Equity investments- All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instrumeats (‘Ind AS 109"} are measured at fair value,
Equity instruments which are held for trading are generally classified as at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). For all other equity
instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) or fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL). The Company makes such electon on an instrument-by-instrament basis. The classification is made
on initial recognition and 1s icrevocable.

{iif) Mutual funds — All mutual funds in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company has
transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset measured at amortized cost {or, depending on the business model, at fair value
through other comprehensive income).

Non- derivative financial liabilities

Tt nition and za HiIE]

All financial Hiabilities are recognised mitially at fair value and transaction cost that is attrbutable to the acquisition of the fnancial
linbilities is also adjusted.

Subsequent measzsement — Amortised cost

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Recoonition and initial and subiequent measurenient — fair palue

A financial liability is classified as fair value through profit and loss (FVTPLY if it is designated as such upoa initial recogaition. Financial
liabilities at FV'TPL are measured at fair value and net gains/losses, including any interest expense are recognised in statement of profi
and loss.

E' ‘-Eﬂ:g ,: :.f

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liablity is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated 25 the de-recognition of the original hability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial guaranitee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a promise by one party (the guarantor) to another {the holder) to make payments if a specified debtor
fails to meet their financial obligations as per the terms of conteacts. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial hability at
the time the guarantee is issued at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of expected loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortization.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and finandcial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to setfle on a aet basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Compound financial instrument

Optionally convertible debentures are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract. On issuance of
the said instrument, the liability component has arrived by discounting the gross sum at a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible
instrument. This amouat is classified as a financial liability measured ar amortised cost uatl it is extnguished on conversion or
redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is recognised as equity component of compound fnancial instrument. This is recognised
and included in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently re-measured. Such instrumeants are classified as
current financial liability if the conversion option vests with the holder.




RGE Constructions and Development Private Limited
CIN: U70101TN2007PTC064100¢
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

5.5

5.6

5.7

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected eredht loss (ECL) mode! for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss for financial assets. The Company factors historical tends and forward-looking information to assess expected credit losses
associated with its assets and impairment methodelogy applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company assesses oa 2 forward looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its financial assets and the impairment
methodology depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Trade receivatiles

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of lnd AS 109, which requires measurement of loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses basis provision matnix approach. Lifetime expected credit losses are the
expected credic losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Qiber financial assets

In respect of ies other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased significantly since
initial recognition. If the credit dsk has aot increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at
ag amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. The Company
assumes that the credit dsk on a financial asset has not increased significantily since initial recognition, if the financial asset is determined
to have low ceedit risk at the balance sheer date.

Trade recervable

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement of loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of 2 financial instrument.

Employee benefits

Defined contribition pian

The Company’s contrbution to provident fund and employee state insurance schemes is charged to the statement of profit and loss or
inventorized as a part of real estate properties under development, as the case may be. The Company’s contributions towards Provident
Fund are deposited with the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner under a defined contribution plan.

Defined benefit plan

The Company has unfunded gracuity as defined benefie plan where the amount that an employee wilk receive on retirement 15 defined by
reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary, The liability recognised in the balance sheet for defined benefit plans as the
present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBQO) at the reportiag date. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance
of independent actuanes. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive
income.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long -term benefit plan.
Linbility in tespect of compensated absences becomiag due and expected to be availed more than one year after the balance sheet date is
estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the
reporting date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumpions are recorded 1n the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses arise.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits comprse of employee costs such as salaries, bonus etc. is recognized on the basis of the ammount paid or
payable for the period during which services are rendered by the employee.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and initial measurement

Properties plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization
crteria are met and directly atteibutable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are iacluded in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when ir is probable that future economic benefits associated with the itemn will flow to the Company.
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful Iives)
Depreciation on propetty, plant and equipment is provided oa the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful lives (as set out
below) prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013

Asset Class Useful life
Furniture and fixtures P 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Vehicles 8 years
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5.10

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, based on internal or external
factors. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating unit is estimated. [f such recoverable
amount of the asset or cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than it's carrying amount, the carrying amount is teduced to
its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at the
reporting date thece is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed,
and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amouni. Impairment losses previously srecognised are accordingly reversed in the Statement
of Profit and Eoss.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisioos ace recognised only whea there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount
of obligation can be made at the ceporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted 1o reflect the current
best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent hability 15 disclosed for:

- Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

- Present obligations adsing from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation or a xelable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are disclosed only when inflow of economic benefits therefrom is probable and recognized only when realization of
mcome is virtually certain,

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures

Significant management judgements
Evaluation of indicaters for impairment of assets— The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires
assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in detetioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Recoverability of advances/receivables— At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected life, the
management assesses the expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances.

Provisions— At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the
requirement of provisions against the outstanding congdngent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this
judgement.

Significant estimates
The following are significaat estimates in applying the accounting policies of the Company that have the most significant effect on the
financial statements.

Revenue and inventories— The estimates around total budgeted cost ie. cutcomes of underlying construction and service contracts,
which farther require assessments and judgements 1o be made on changes in work scopes, chims and other paymenis to the extent they
are probable, and they are capable of being reliably measured. For the purpose of making estimates for claims, the Company used the
available coatractual and historical information. The esdmates of the saleable area are also reviewed periodically and effect of any
changes in such estimates is recognised in the period such changes are determined.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets— Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable
assets at each reporting date, based on the expecied udlity of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic
obsolescence that may change the utilization of asset.

Fair value measurements— Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active
market quotes are aot available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing esumates and assumptions consistent with how
market parucipants would price the instrument. Management uses the best information available, Estimated fair values may vary from
the actual prces that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.
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6 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Fumiture Office Vehicles Total
equiprnents
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 01 April 2023 20.43 1,307.37 1,667.12 3,003.92
Additons - - - -
Deletions - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 29,43 1,307.37 1,667.12 3,003.92
Balance as at 01 April 2024 29.43 1,307.37 1,667.12 3,003.92
Addidions - - - -
Deletions - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 29.43 1,307.37 1,667.12 3,003.92
t eCl
Balance as at 01 April 2023 29.43 1,274.19 1,339.60 2,643.22
Additions - 3318 103.39 136.57
Deletions - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 29.43 1,307.37 1,442.99 2,779.79
Balance as at 01 April 2024 29.43 1,307.37 1,442.99 2,779.7%
Addidons - - 67.13 67.13
Deletions - - . -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 29.43 1,307.37 1,510.12 2,846.92
Carrying Amount ( Net)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - - 22413 224.13

Balance as at 31 Macch 2025 - - 157.00 157.00
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7A  Other financial assets - non- current
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Al amounts are in ¥ thousands, unless otherwise stateq

Particualrs As ag A ;
. 31 March 2025 31 Macch 20;
Security deposits 83.00 83.00
Financial guarantee asset 1,890.22 -
1,973.22 83.0(
Othet financial assets - current
Particul As at As ¢
arncuwiaces 31 March 2025 31 March 202
Fixed deposits with bank* = 15,041.47
Interest accrued on fixed deposits - 809.03
Financial Guarantee assets 667.14 -
667.14 15,850.50
*Margin money deposit held under Lien towards borrowings - maturity less than 12 months
Non-current tax assets, net
. As at Asa
Facticalia 31March 2025 31 March 202
Advance income tax, including tax deducted at source 1,805.81 10,078.56
1,805.81 10,078.56
Other non-current assets
. As at As a
Fargealacs 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Deposit with siamtory authottes 39.450.40 54,791.53
39,450.40 54,791.53
Other current assets
Particul As at Asar
are 31March 2025 31 March 2024
Unsecuted, considered goad
Advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 2,949.75 164.49
Prepayments - 208.00
Balance with government authotities 1,86,832.73 1,68,842.52
1,89,782.48 1,69,215.01
Inventories {(valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)
Pacticul As at As at
AEEHEEs 31Macch2025 31 March 2024
Stock of constructed property 16,527.67 21,465.93
Properties under development 23,08,985.29 23,04,004.52
23,25,512.%96 23,25,470.45

*The company has created first ranking exclusive charge by way to registered mortgage over project Embassy Residency and related sold and unsold

receivables in favour of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited for the listed non- ¢

Land Development Limited. (Also Refer No.28B)

onvertible debentures issued by a fellow subsidiary company Lucina

Cash and cash equivalents
Particul As at As at
arhentas 31March2025 31 Masch 2024
Balances with banks:
in cuerent accounts Kq: 8.90 1,673.10
Cash on hand (E—’ 2N 88.04 2.42
Wol onyon T 96.94 1,675.52
B
\\::.‘3\
XD act
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12 Equity share capital

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 Mazch 2024
No.of Shares Amount No.of Shares Amount
Authorised
8,00,000 (31 March 2024: 8,00,000) Class "A' equity 8,00,000 8,000.00 8,600,600 8,000.00
shares of T 10 each _
200,000 (31 March 2024: 2,00000) Class 'B' equity 2,00,000 2,000.00 2,00,000 2,000.00
shares (having differential rights) of Z 10 each
16,00,000 10,0060.00 10,060,000 10,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
506,057 (31 March 2024: 5,06,057) Class 'A" equity
shates of Z 10 each, fully paid up 5,06,057 5,060.57 5,06,057 5,060.57
1,03,471 (31 March 2024: 1,03,471) Class 'B' equity
shares (having differential rights) of ¥ 10 each, fully paid 1,03,471 1,034.71 1,03,471 1,034.71
up
6,09,528 6,095.28 6,09,528 6,095.28
a. Reconciliation of the mumber of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
Pasticulass Aas at 31 March 2025 As at 31 Macch 2024
No.of Shates Amount No.of Shares Amount
Class ‘A’ equity shares
Gutstanding at the beginning of the year 5,06,057 5,060.57 5,06,057 5,060.57
Issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 5,06,057 5,060.57 5,06,057 5,060.57
Class ‘B’ equity shares (having differential rights)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,053,471 1,034.71 103471 1,034.71
Issued during the vear - - - -
OQutstanding at the end of the year 1,03,471 1,034.71 103,471 1,034.71
b. Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Paticulars NG ot % held No. of Shares % held
Shares
Class A’ equity shates
Worldpart Limited frefér nore below) - - 1,12,756 22.28%
Embassy Realty Ventures Private Limited (refer note
below) - - 393,301 77.72%
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as
Equinox India Developments Ltd and eatlier known as
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) (refer note below) 5,06,057 160.00% - s
Class 'B’ equity shares
Embassy Realty Ventures Prvate Limited (refir nore
belon) - - 1,03,471 100.00%
Embassy Developments Limited (Formetly known as
Equinox India Developments Ltd and earlier known as
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) (refer soze below) 1,063,471 100.00% - -

c. Rights, preferences and restrictions of each class of share capital

Class ‘A’ equity shares
Class 'A’ equity shares mean the equity shares of face value o
per equity share.

are capital of the company, each such equity share having one vote
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Class ‘B’ equity shares

Class 'B' equity shates shall mean the equity shares of face value of 210 each in

Al amnounes are in¥ thousands, unless otherwise state:

the share capital of the company with differental voting rights

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act (Differential Voting Rights) Regulations, each such equity share having no rights attached 1

them except the voting rights at one vote per equity share.

d. Conversion of Class "B’ equity shares into Class 'A" equity shares
Class B’ equity shares {face value - T 10} are to be converted into Class 'A’ equity shares (face value - ¥ 10), at par, at

completion.

¢. Details of shareholding of Promoters

the time of proje

Share Held by Promoters
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Promoter Name Type of Shate | Numb % Total of
e r
e mber Mtk Number of shares | % Total of Shares
of shares Shares
Worldpart Limited z¢ bl ‘Al equi
i (rgirwe blow) Class ‘A" equity - : 1,12,756 22,289
shares
Embassy Realty Ventures Private Limited (refir #ore A equi
3= f Class 'A” equiey - - 3,93,301 77.72%

below) shares ’
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox
India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Class 'A’ equity
Estate Limited) (including norninee shares) (refer note sharesq 5,06,057 100.00% -
below)

Total of Class 'A' equity shares 5,06,057 100.00% 5,06,057 100.00%
Embassy Realty Ventures Private Limited {refer sore 'B' equi

o ey Rentuces Bava iy Class B equicy - . 103,471 100.00%

bedow) shares
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as
Equinox India Developments Limited and eardiet Class 'B' equity
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) (including norninee shares 1,03,471 100.00% - -
shares) frefer note below)

Total of Class 'B' equity shares 1,03,471 100.00% 1,03,471 100.00%

Note: During April 2024, Embassy Realty Ventures Private Limited and Worldpart Limited transferred their holding in equity

Class 'B') and their holding in Fully Cornpulsorily Convertible Debentures & O

Embassy Property Developments Private Limited.

Further, on 24 May 2024, Embassy Property Developments Private Lirited transferred all the shares (Class "A" & Class "B"

shares (Class 'A' &

ptonally Redeernable Convertible Debentures (both old and new) to

) and all the debentures

of the company to Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier known as Indiabulls

Real Esrate Lirnited).
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14A

All amounes are in ¥ thousands, unless otherwise stated

Other equity
; As at As at
P
il 31March2025 31 March 2024
a) Retained Earnings
At the commencement of the year (34,37,687.51) {32,38,247.15)
Add: Transferred from Equity Component on Corporate Guarantee 95,476.31 -
Add: Loss for the year (56,149.09) (1,99,440.36)
At the end of the year (33,98,360.29) (34,37,687.51)
b} Equity Component of Compound Financial Instruments
1) Fully and Compolsurily Convertible Debentures#
(4,49,87,531 debentures of T 100 each (31 March 24 : 1,65,54,868 debentures of ¥
100 each))
At the commencement of the year 16,55,486.80 16,55,486.80
Add: Tssued during the year 28,43,266.30 -
At the end of the yeat 44,98,753.10 16,55,486.80
i) Optionally Redeemable Convertible Debentutes #
(20,08,644 debentures of ¥ 100 each) (refer noie 14A)
At the commencement of the year 1,73,513.17 1,73,513.17
Add: Additions during the year - -
At the end of the year 1,73,513.17 1,73,513.17
iii) Equity Component on Corporate Guarantee
At the commencement of the year 95,476.31 95,476.31
Add: Transfer to retained earnings (95,476.31) -
At the end of the year - 95,476.31
12,73,905.98 (15,13,211.24)

# On 3rd Apdl 2024, the company has issued 2,84,32,663 additional fully and compulsonily convertible debentures (FCCD) of ¥ 100 each to
Embassy Realty Ventures Private Lirnited by converting inter-corporate deposit and interest due thereon. On 4th April 2024, entire fully and
compulsorily convertible debenture (FCCD) (old and new) and optionally redeemable convertible debentures (ORCD) transferred to Embassy
Property Developments Private Limited. Further, on 24 May 2024, Embassy Property Developments Private Limited transferred entire debentures
(FCCD & ORCD) to Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Lirnited and earlier known as Indiabulls Real Estate

Limited).

Borrowings - non-current

Particulars et As at
31 March 2025 31 Match 2024

Debentures:

Unsecured:

Optionally redeemable convertible debentures

(20,08,644 debentures of ¥ 100 each) 1,98,704.00 1,73,540.61

1,98,704.00 1,73,540.61

Conversion Terms Date of conversion Rate of conversion

Fully and compulsorily convertible April 30, 20265+ 10 Class 'A' equity shares for 1 debenture held, at par
debentures (1,65,54,868 debentures of

T 100 each)

Optionally redeemable convertible April 30, 2026%* 10 Class ‘A’ equity shares for 1 debenture held, at par

debentures {20,08,644 debentures of ¥
100 eachy)

Fully and compulsorily convertible
debentures (2,84,32,663 debentures of

% 100 each)

10 Class ‘A’ equity shares for 1 debeature held, at pat




RGE Constructions and Development Private Limited
CIN: UT0101TN2007PT'C064100
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

14B

15A

Al amnouns are in ¥ thousands, unless othetwise stated

**The Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (FCCDs) and Optionally Redeemable Convertible Debentures (ORCDs) were issued to the
Investor and Sponsor respectively on 4th September 2007 for a tenor of 6 years and at coupon tate of 14% p.a. The said FCCDs and ORCDs wex
due for conversion on 3rd September 2013. The coupon rates on the FCCDs and ORCDs respectively were revised to 0% p.a. from the FY 2015
16 onwards. Subsequently with the consent of the Investor and Sponsor, the date of conversion of the FGCDs and ORCDs wete extended up i
30th April, 2022. The Company had received consent from the Investor and Sponsor for further extension of the tenor and the date of conversior
of the FCCDs and ORCDs till 30th April 2025. The said extension was approved by the Board of Directors via resolution dated 20th March 2023
and by the shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting dated 28th March 2023. On 3rd Apnrl 2024, company has issved additiona
284,532,663 FCCD of ¥ 100 each for a tenor of 10 years. The company has further received a consent letter from holder(s) of FCCD and ORCD
for further extension of the tenor and the date of conversion of the FCCD and ORCD for a perod of one year ie. 30 April 2026. The said
extension was approved by the board of directors on 06 March 2025 and the same was approved by shareholders at Extraordinary General Meeting
dated 28 March 2025.

Borrowings - current

Particulars As at At
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Debentures:

Secured:

Non-convertible debentures (1,130 debentutes of % 1000 thousand each} (Refer note a below) - 2,52,962.50

Unsecured:

Repayable on demand - From related parties

Loans from related parties (Refer note b below) 7,82,593.16 26,54,108.88

7,82,593.16 28,87,071.38
Notes:

2) During the year, company has fully redeemed, non-convertible debentures issued to Asia Real Estate Limited with interest thereon. The company
had issued 1130 secured, unrated, redeemable, unlisted, non-convertible debentures of nominal value of ¥ 1,060 each on a private placement basis

to Asia Real Estate Capital with Interest rate of 14.5% pa. and the same was secured by way of:
1. Chatge by way of mortgage of the Project (Land along with all structure standing thereon)
2. Charge by way of hypothecation in developer's share of Projects receivables.
3. Escrow of developer’s share of receivables from the Project.
4. Share Pledge over the share of the company to the extent of M/s Embassy Realty Ventures Private Limited's present and future shareholding
in the company.
5. Demand Promissoty Note
b) Catrying nil rate of interest and repayable on demand. (tefer note 29)

Other financial liabilities - non-current

Particulars As at As ar
articu 31March 2025 31 March 2024
Financial guaraniee liabilities 1,451.22 -

Total 1,451.22 -
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Other financial liabilities - current
7 As at As at
Famulars 31 Macch 2025 31 March 2024
a) Interest acerued but not due:
1) Interest payable on Fully and compulsorily convertible debentures (FCCDs):
- to related patties (refer note 29) 9,039.33 9.039.33
- to others - 1,04,423.98
iy Optionally Redeemable Convertible Debentures {ORCDs):
- to related parties frefér nore 29) 96,937.66 96,937.66
iy ICD Interest payable:
- to related patties (refer note 29) - 4,55,094.55
b} Interest accrued and due on borrowings
iy NCD Interest payable:
- to others - 3,808.26
¢) Other payables
- to related parties frefer note 29) 92.54 -
- to others - 1,831.77
d) Payables for expenses - 42,028.00
¢} Financial guarantee lizbilities 1,000.97 -
f) Accrued employee benefits 2,996.42 .
1,10,066.92 7,73,163.55
Provisions - non-current
Particulars s at &5 ak
31 March 2025 31 Mazrch 2024
Provision for gratutity (refer note 30) 23417 -
Provision for compensated absences {refer sofe 30) 438.33 -
672.50 -
Provisions - cutrent
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Provision for gratudty (refer nofe 30) 1.07 -
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 30} 6.28 -
7.35 -
Other non-current Labilities
Particulars A at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Amount payable to association 40,413.06 80,296.78
40,413.06 80,296.78
Other current liabilities
Particulars As at oty
31 Maxch 2025 31 March 2024
Advance received from customers 20,751.14 19.844.37
Statutory dues 840.61 60.07
Interest payable to MSME suppliers 50.02 -
Provision for forseeable losses 1,532.90 1,532.90
23,174.67 21,437.34
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18 Trade payables

Particul As at As at

prene 31March 2025 31 March 2024
Dues to micto enterprises and small enterprises 4,184.05 12,088.08
Others
Dues to creditors other than micre enterprises and small enterprises

- related parties 95,310.18 1,11,879.94

- others 18,544.73 22,338.29
Retentdon Money 4,322.85 2,688.69

1,22,361.81 1,48,995.00
[Ageing as at 31 March 2025 Outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2025
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 year lyearto2) Zyeario3 More than 3 years Total
years years
{i) Undisputed dues - MSME - 4,184.05 - - - 4,184.05
{ii) Undisputed dues - Other than
MSME 4,322.85 1596626 | 38,489.50 13,377.79 46,621.36 1,18,177.76
{iif} Disputed dues - MSME - - = - _
{iv) Disputed dues - Other than
MSME - - - , -
|Ageing as at 31 March 2024 Outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2024
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 year 1ycasip 2| 2ycattic More than 3 yeats Total
years yem

i) Undisputed dues - MSME - 4314.15 86.71 . 7,687.22 12,088.08
{i) Undisputed dues - Other than
MSME . 8,358.85 3,008.44 16,164.81 1,09,374.82 1,36,906.92
{iil} Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
{iv) Dispured dues - Other than
MSME - - - - - -
Note :

] As at As at
Pasticulacs 31 Macch 2025 31 Macch 2024
{i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end off 4,184.05 12,088.08
each accounting year;

{ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyet in tetms of secton 16, along with the amounts of the Nill Nil
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

(iily The amount of interest due and payable for the petod of delay in making payment (which have Nill Nil
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under

this Act;

{iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and 50.02 Nil
(v} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such Nil Nil

disallowance as a deductible expenditire under section 23.

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of]

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been deterrnined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of informaticn available with the Company.
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19 Revenue from operations

Pacticulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from ceal esiate properties 6,250.00 -
6,250.00 -
20 Other income
Pasticulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Iaterest Income
from Banlks - on fixed deposit 480.49 1,019.15
from Income Tax refund 5,630.42 5.68
Other non-operating income
Finaacial Guarantee income 271.95 -
Brokerage Income 1,492.23 2,242.95
Liabilities written back 5,975.36 6,848.75
Miscellaneons Income - 303.00
13,850.45 10,419.53
21 Cost of revenue
. For the year ended For the year ended
Pasicolats 31 Macch 2025 31 March 2024
Cost incurred dunag the year 4,980.77 -
Increase in real estate properties
Opening stock 23,25,470.45 23,25,470.45
Closing stock {23,25,512.96) {23,25,470.45)
4,938.26 -
22 Employee benefits expenses
i For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 I{darch 2025 3 l\);larch 2024
Salaries and wages 10,989.38 -
Bonus and ex-gratia 2,996.42 -
Gratuity and leave encashment 679.85 -
Professional tax 3.24 -
Contrbuton to provident fund and other funds 79.00 -
Staff welfare expenses 1.25 -
14,749.14 -
23 Finance costs
. For the year ended For the year ended
Pagsicuing 31 March 2025 31 Macch 2024
Interest expense
- on secured non-coavertible debentures 24,679.04 48,372.48
- on optenally redeemable convertible debentures 25,163.39 21,976.76
- on micro enterprise and small enterprises 50.02 -
- 0n taxation 0.40 -
Financial guarantee expenses 166.78 338.32
50,059.63 70,687.56
24 Depreciation expense
Pasticulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {Refer Nove 6} 67.13 136.56
67.13 136.56
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25 Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 Maech 2624
Bank charges 515.26 -
Bad debts written off 9.70 -
Business promotion expenses - 16.10
Auditor's remuneration® 750.00 100.00
Communication expenses 37.90 5222
Hire charges - 14.59
Legal and professional charges 2,570.76 6,226.40
Rates and taxes 267.44 25,228.81
Electricity charges 461.66 547.07
Customer compensation 393.62 31,214.43
[nsurance charges 207.75 37285
Repairs and maintenance expenses 173.47 71,931.66
Water charges - 926.70
Security charges 389,20 917.60
Software charges - 347.79
Miscellaneous expenses $58.62 1,139.55
6,435.38 1,39,035.97
Auditor's temuneration®
. For the year ended For the year ended
Payment to anditors 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
- For audit fees 750.00 100.00
750.00 100.00

Feserluding faseer
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26. Income taxes
A. No income tax expense was recognised in the statement of profit and loss account.

B. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Loss before tax (56,149.09) (1,99,440.36)
At India’s statutory income tax rate 25.168% 26.000%
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (14,131.60) (51,854.49)
Effect of:
Income/(Expenditure) on account of application of Ind AS not allowable under Income Tax 4,989.01 5,801.92
Deferred tax asset not created on business losses 9,142.59 46,052.57

Income tax expense reported in the staternent of profit and loss

C. Unrecognised deferred tax assets

The shareholders of the company has entered into a share purchase agreement for transfer of their securities. As per section 79 of the Income Tax
Act, where a change in shareholding has taken place during the previous year in the case of a compaay, not being a company in which the public are
substantially interested, no loss incurred in any year prior to the previous year shall be carried forward and set off against the income of the previous
year, unless on the last day of the previous year, the shares of the company carrying not less than fifty-one per cent of the voting power were
beneficially held by persons whe beneficially held shares of the company carrying not less than fifty-one per cent of the votng power on the last day
of the year or years in which the loss was incurred. Accordingly the accumulated business will not be eligible to carry forward and hence no deferred
tax asset created during the year.

27. Eamings per share {'EPS")

The Company's Earnings per Share ("EPS"} is determined based on the net profit actrbutable to the shaceholders. Basic eamings per share is
computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per shase is computed using the weighted
average number of common and diluove common equivalent shares outstanding during the year including share options, except where the result

would be anti-dilutive.

i, Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating eamings per share:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Loss as per statement of profit and loss {56,149.09) (1,99,440.36}
ii. Reconciliation of basic & diluted shares used in computing earnings per share
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year - Class ‘A’ 5,06,057 506,057
Fully and Compulsonly Convertible Debentures at the begianing of the year (refer note 13 & 14A) 16,55,48,680 16,55,48,680
Add: Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Debentures issued during the year
(2,84,32,663 debentures of 100 each) (refer note 13 & 14A) 28,43,26,630 -
Number of equity shares for basic EP§ 45,03,81,367 16,60,54,737
Optionally Redeemable Convertible Debentures
(20,08,644 debentures of ¥ 100 each) (refer note 14A) 200,86:440 2,00,86,440
Number of equity shares at the heginning of the year - Class 'B'# 1,03,471 1,03,471
Number of equity shares for diluted EPS#* 47,05,71,278 18,62,44,648
iii. Earnings per equity share:
Pacticula Year ended Year ended
bl 31March 2025 31 March 2024
Basic {0.12) (1.20)
Diluted* ©.12) (1.20)

#The company has issued Class ‘B’ equity shares {face value - ¥ 10) having differential rights (only having the right to vote but a0 other nghts of
equity shareholders, including right to dividend, rights at winding up and at repayment of capital or otherwise). These shares are convertible into Class
'A' equity shares, at par, at the time of project completion. Therefore, Class ‘B’ equity shares are considered only for diluted EPS computation and aot

basic EPS computation.
*The Class "B equity shares and Optionally redeemable convertible debentures are not conisdered as potential equity shares while computing Dilured

S and 31 Macch 2024 which makes the potential shares anti-dilutive.
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28. Commitments and contingencies

. As at As at
Farticulars 31 March 202531 March 2024
A. Contingent liabilities
(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt in respect of [acome-Tax matters - 17,149.82
(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt in respect of Service-tax matters 17,300.00 28,178.45
fi)) Chaims against the Company not acknowledged as debt in respect of GST matters 1,87,000.00 2,03,090.81

B. Cotporate Guarantee

The company has given corporate guarantee in respect of listed non- convertible debentuces issued by Lucina Land Development Limited (a fellow
subsidiary), along with its holding company and some fellow subsidiary companies, of  95,00,000 thounsaads during the year ended 31 March 2025,
The outstanding amount of this listed non- convertible debearure is T 11,00,000 thousands as on 31 March 2025. The corporate guaraatee is
unconditional, irrevocable and continuous to remain in force until the full repayment of listed non-convertible debentures. As on 31 March 2025, no
liability has been crystallized under this agreement.

The erstwhile NAM Estate Private Limited famalgamated with holding comnpany Embassy Developments Limited {formerly known as Equinox India
Developments Limited and earlier known as Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)) has received Stay from the Karnataka High Court on levy of GST on
Corporate Guarantee in Writ petition 632/2024 and Wit petition 753/2024. In view of the stay granted to holding company, the matter is sub-judice
and management is of the opinion that no provisioning is requized w.r.t this matter in the company.

C. The Company has certain litigations involving customers and vendors. Based on advice of in-house legal team, company has zecognised provisions
for claims and compensations which the Company expects to pay against the settdement of disputes with the customers. Apart from the provision
recognised, management believes that no material liability will devolve on the Company in respect of these litigations.

D. There were no commitments pending to be reported as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

29. Related Party Transactions

(i) Names of related parties and description of relationship:

Ulimate Holding Company JV Holding Private Limited dll 24 May 2024
Holding company Embassy Realty Ventures Private Limited dll 04 April 2024

Embassy Property Developments Private Limited from 04 Apnl 2024 o 24 May 2024

Embassy Developmeats Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India Developments Limited
and eaclier known as Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) w.e.f. 24 May 2024 (refer zote 40)

PFellow subsidiary companies* Citra Properties Limited w.e.f. 24 May 2024
Lucina Land Development Limited w.e.f 24 May 2024
Other enterprises under the control Embassy Services Private Limited tifl 24 May 2024 and w.e.f 24 January 2025
or significant influence of Key Embassy Property Developments Private Limited 6l 24 May 2024 and w.e.f. 24 January 2025

Management Personnel of the

u]ﬁ{nate hF:ldjng compeny andy/ge Technique Coatrol Facility Management Private Limited till 24 May 2024 and w.e.f. 24 January
their relatives with whom there 2025

were transactions*
Collaborative Workspace Consultants LLP till 24 May 2024 and w.e.f. 24 January 2025

Stonehill Education Foundation till 24 May 2024 and w.e.f. 24 January 2025

*With whon transactions bave been entersd during current year andf or previons year.
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({ii) Details of related party transactions during the year

. Year ended Year ended
P
Facticulacs arty name 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Inter corporate deposits taken/ Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as
(repaid), net Equinox I]:ldi‘if. Developments Limite_d and earlier _ 3,41,992.00
known as Tadiabulls Real Estate Limited)
Embassy Realty Ventures Private Limited (including
non-cash component) (refer note 13 & 144) (26,34,108.88) -
Citra Properties Limited 7,82,593.16 -
Intetest paid Embassy Realty Ventuses Private Limited {including
non-cash component) frefer notz 13 & 14.4) B2 )
Fully and compulsorily Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as
convertible debentures issued Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier
known as Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) (igfer note 73 28,43,266.30 B
o 14A4)
Other expenses - Software Embassy Property Developments Private Limited - 497.79
Other expenses - Maintenance Embassy Services Private Limited 91.48 3,290.30
charges Technique Control Facility Managemeat Private
Limies f y Manage 175.75 3,.905.30
Collaborative Workspace Consultants LLP - 800.00
Other expenses - Incentives Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly kaown as
Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier 6,300.68 -
known as Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)
Other expenses - Professional Collaborative Workspace Consultants LLP 320.00 1,120.00
Techaique Control Facility Management Private —
Limited - RER
Miscellaneous Income Stonehill Education Foundation - 287.00
Corporate guarantee given Lucina Land Development Limited 95,00,000.00 -
(iv) Amount outstanding as at the balance sheet date :
Year ended Year ended
i P
Pilticulars arty name 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Inter corporate deposits taken Citra Properties Limited 7,82,593.16 -
Embassy Realty Veneures Private Limited - 26,34,108.88
Fully and compulsorily Embassy Realty Ventures Prvate Limited - 12,41,672.20
convertible debentures Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as
Equinox India Developments Limited and eaclier
known as Indiabuils Real Estate Limited) (refer note 13 44,98,753.10 -
& 714.4)
Optionally Redeemable Embassy Realty Ventures Private Limited - 2,00,864.40
convertible debentures Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as
Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier
known as Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) (rgfer notz 13 2,00,864.40 -
& 144}
Interest accrued but not due:
On ICD Embassy Realty Ventures Private Limited 4,55,004.55
On FCCD Embassy Property Developments Private Limired 9,039.33 9,039.33
On ORCD Embusy Dcvelopments Limited {Formetly known as
Eq el Developments Licnited and eadier B 96.937.66

96,937.66
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Corporate guarantee given Lucina Land Development Limited 95,00,000.00 -
Trade payables Embassy Developmenis Limited {Formetly known as
Equinox India Developments Limited aad earlier
known as Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) 20,697.02 13,377.79
Embassy Property Developments Privace Limited 74,440.36 74,451.73
Collaborative Wotkspace Consuitants LLP 172.80 2,156.81
Embassy Services Privare Limited - 7,75482
Techrique Control Facility Management Private "
Limited - 14,138.79
Vendor Advance Techaique Control Facility Management Private
Limited 96.34 -
Other payables Embassy Realty Veatures Private Limited 92.54 -

*Druring the year, erstwhile Nam Estates Private Limited now merged with Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox [adia
Developmeats Limited and earker known as Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) assigned this intecest receivable to Embassy Property Developments
Private Limited.

30. Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution Plan
The Company has made ¥ 79 thousands (31 March 2024 Nil} contribugions in respect of provident fund.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has the following Defined Benefit Plans:
* Geanity (Unfunded)
& Compensated absences (Unfunded)

Risks associated with plan provisions

Discouat rate risk Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liability.

Mortality risk Actu_al f:lfza}th £ liability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuaton can impact
the liabilites.

Salary sk Acwal salary increase will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in salary increase rate

s
2 assumption in future vatuations will also increase the liabilicy.

Withdrawal risk A‘ctual withdrawals proving higher' or low'cr than assur'necllh withdrawals and change of]

withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan's liabilicy.
Compensated absences

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for sick and earned leaves. The amount of provision of ¥ 6.28 thousands (31 March 2024 Nil) is
presented as current, since the Company does ot have an unconditiogal tight 1o defer settlement for any of these obligations. However based on
past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next 12 months,
therefore based on the independent acruarial report, only a certain amouat of provision has been presented as current and remaining as non-current.

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation:

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Actuarial (gain}/loss on asisiog from change in demographic assumptions

Actuarial (gain) /loss on adsing from change in Gnancial assumptions

Actuarial (gain}/loss on adising from change in experience assuraptions

Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Current service cosc

444.61

Net interest cost

Actuarial (pain)/loss for the year

Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

4144.61
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Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year - -
Current service cost 444.61 -
Interest cost - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss, net - -
Benefits paid - E
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 444.61 -

- current 6.28 -

- 1on current 438.33 -

For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were vsed:

|£articulars Compensated absences
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Discount rate 7.15% -
Salary escalation rate 5.00% -
100% of Indian
. Assured Lives
Mortality table Mortality (2012- ’
14

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets has not
been presented.

These assumpdons were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount factors are determined close to
each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that have terms to maturity approgimating to the terms of the
related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management’s historical experience.

Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation

Year 31 March 2025 Year 31 March 2024
Apeil 2025 - March 2026 6.28 |Apnl 2025 - March 2026 -
April 2026 - March 2027 11.57 [April 2026 - March 2027 -
April 2027 - March 2028 11.46 |April 2027 - March 2028 -
Apal 2028 - March 2029 11.35 [Apnl 2028 - March 2029 -
April 2029 - March 2030 10.88 |April 2029 - March 2030 -
Apl 2030 - March 2031 10.81 {Apnl 2030 - March 2031 -
April 2031 onwards 382.26 | Aprl 2031 onwards -
Sensitivity analysis for compensated absences liability
Particulass | 31 March2025] 31 March 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 444.61 -
) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % {23.74) -
b} Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 24.44 -
Impact of the change in galary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 444.61 -
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 2524 -
b) Irnpact due to decrease of (.50 % (23.73) -

Sensttivities due o mortality and withdrawal are not material & hence impact of change not calculated,

Gratuity

The Company provides for grawity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gramity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous service for a
period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity, The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employee's last drawn basic salery per
moath computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. Gratuity plan is a non-funded plan.

Actuarial gain/ (loss) cecognized in other comprehensive income

Particulars

31 March 2025

51 March 2024

Actuarial {gain)/loss on arising from change in demopraphic assumptions

Actuarial (gain)/loss oo arising from change in § Tassumptions
Actuarial (pain)/loss on arsing from change L Qpermee sitmplions
5y
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Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

Al amounis are in¥ thousands, unless otherwise stated

Particulats 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current service cost 235.24 -
Net Iuterest cost - -
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 235.24 -
Moverment in the liability recoguized in the balance sheet is as under:
Particulars 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year - -
Current service cost 235.24 -
Interest cost = -
Actuarial {gain) /loss, net - -
Benefits paid - -
Present value of defived benefic obligation at the end of the year 235.24 -
- current 1.07 -
- 00N cufrent 23417 -
For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were used:
[Particulacs Gratuity
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 6.99% -
Salary escalation rate 5.00% -
100% of Indian
. Assured Lives
Mortality table Mortality (2012- ’
14)

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets has not

been presented.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistaace of independent acruarial appraisers. Discount factors are determined close to
each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the

related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management’s historical experience.

Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation

Year 31 March 2025 Year 31 March 2024
April 2025 - March 2026 1.07 JApril 2025 - March 2026 -
April 2026 - March 2027 0.56 | April 2026 - March 2027 -
Apal 2027 - March 2028 0.99 |April 2027 - March 2028 -
April 2028 - March 2029 0.85 JApdl 2028 - March 2029 -
Aprl 2029 - March 2030 3.77 JApril 2029 - March 2030 -
April 2030 - March 2031 3.82 {April 2030 - March 2031 -
April 2031 onwards 224.18 JApril 2031 onwards -
Sensitivity analysis for compensated gratuity liability
| 31 March 2025] 31 March 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 235.24 =
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % {12.75) -
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 13.69 -
Impact of the change in salacy increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 235.24 -
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 13.89 -
b} impact due to decrease of 0.50 % {13.05) -

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material & hence impact of change not ealculaged.

31. Provident Fund

The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India has passed a judgement dated 28 February 2019 and it was held that hasic wages, for the purpose of provident
fund, to inclnde allowances which aze common for all employees. However, there is uncertainty with respect to the applicability of the judgement and
petiod from which the same applies. Currently, the Company has not considered any impact in these financial statements,
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32. Financial instruments by category

For amotised cost instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value,

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
FVTPL FVOCI R FVTPL FvVOocCi .
(See Note 1) (See Note2) ‘Amortised Cost (Sce Notel)  (See Note2) mortised Cost

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - - 96.94 - - 1,675.52

Other financial assets - - 2,640.36 - - 15,933.50
Total - - 2,737.30 - - 17,609.02
Notes

1. These financial assets are mandatodly measured at fair value through profit and loss.
2. These financial assets represent investments in equity instruments designated as such upoan initial recognitioa.

Particulars As at 31 Maech 2025 As at 31 March 2024
FVTPL FVYOCI  Amortised Cost  FVIPL FVOCI A"g’;:“d
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 9.81,297.16 - - 30,60,611.99
Trade payables - - 1,22.361.81 - - 1,48,995.00
Other financial Kabilities - - 1,11,518.14 - - 7.73,163.55
Total - - 12,15,177.11 - - 39,82,770.54

33. Financial instruments - Fair value measurenent

() Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets and financial Liabilities measured at fair value in the statemeat of financial position ace grouped into three Levels of a fair value
hieracchy. The three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level I quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maxirnise
the use of observable market data rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the inscrument is included in level 3,

Company does not have any financial assets and fnzacial liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value so no analysis has been shown for
fair value measuremeuts.

(b) Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
Financial instruments measured at amortised cost for which the carrying value is the fair value.

34. Financial risk management

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, iquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Company's dsk management framework. This note explaing the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and
how the entity manages the risk and the relaed impact in the financial statements.

(A) Credi risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company's exposure to eredit risk is influenced mainly
by cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other financial assets measuced at amortised cost. The Company continuously monitors defaults of
customers and other connterparties and incorporates this information into its credic dsk controls.

{a} Credit risk management

£ Credit risk rating

The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categoties arrived on the basis of assumptioas, inputs and
factors specific to the class of financial assers,

A: Low credit risk
B: Moderate credit risk
C: High credit dsk

Asset group Basis of %ﬁﬁa'&?};\\ Provision for expected credit loss
13

A. Low credit sisk Cash and Wﬁwwer financial assets  No provision provided
X @
L e A
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Assets ace wdtten off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptey or a litigation decided against the
Company. The Company continues to engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are
recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss.

Assets under credit righk —

Credit rating Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
A Cash and cash equivalents 96.94 1,675,52
A Other financial assets 2,640.36 15,933.50

iiy Concentration of financial assets
The company's principal business activities are real estate project advisory, construction and development of real estate properties and all other related
activities. The Company's other financial assets majorly cepresents security deposits and Gnancial guarantee assets,

(b) Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses
The company has not provided any provision for expected credic loss against any financial asset.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are setled by
delivering cash or another financial asset, The Company’s approach to manging liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilides when they are due.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The
company takes into account the hiquidty of the market in which the entity operates.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The table below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contracrual maturities.

31 Magch 2025 Less than 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo;:z;:-::n ? Total
Financial labilities
Borrowings 7.82,593.16 1,98,704.00 ; - 9,81,297.16
Trade payables 1,22,361.81 - - - 1,22,361.81
Other financial liabilities 1,10,066.92 824.75 492,34 134.13 1,11,518.14
Total 10,15,021.89 1,99,528.75 492.34 134.13 12,15,177.11
31 March 2025 Less ¢than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo;;:ix:n 3 Total
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 28,87,071.38 - 1,73,540.61 - 30,60,611.99
Trade payables 1,48,995.00 - - - 1,48,995.00
Other financial liabilites 7,73,163.55 - - - 7,73,163.55
Total 38,09,229.93 - 1,73,540.61 - 39,82,770.54

{C) Market risk

i) Interest rate risk

The company's fixed rate borrowings are not subject to intecese rate risks as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future
cash flows will Auctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

The company's variable rate borrowings is subject to interest rate. Below is the overall exposure of the following:

As at As at

icul
Faticalin 31March 2025 31 March 2024

Fixed rate bortowings:

Non-convertible debentures 9.81,297.16 30,60,611.99
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial fabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in
interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

ii) Price risk
The company does not have any exposure for price risk as j

iif) Foreign exchange risk
The company does not have any exposure to foreign
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35 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibilities Activities

36

37

38

Since the Company does not meet the criteria specified in Section 135 of Companies Act,

2013, the Company is not sequired to spend any

amount on activities celated to Corporate Social Responsibility for the year ended 31 March 2025,

Capital management

Particulars s At As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total Debts 0.81,297.16 30,60,611.99
Less: Cash and cash egaivalents 96.94 1,675.52
Net Debt 9.81,394.10 30,62,287.51
Equity 12,80,001.26 (15,07,115.96)
Net-debt to equity ratio 0.77 {2.03)
Segment Reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of real estate development, which as per Indian Accounting Standard — 108 on ‘Operating

Segments’ s considered to
g1

be the only reportable business segment. The Company is operating in India. which is considered as 2 single

geographical segmeat.
Ratios
The following are anaiytical ratios for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:
As at As at
Particulars Numerator Denominator 31 March y Variance Reasons
31 March 2024
2025
Cutrent Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 242 0.66 270% Note 1
Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholders Equity 0.77 (2.03) -138% Note 2
. Earning before

E::; Service Coverage interest, taxand  |Debt Service ©.01) (1.59) -100% Note 3

depreciation

. , y Sharehol

Retura on Equity Ratio [ 1ot Lrofit After | Average Shareholders 0.49 0.14 249% Note 4

Taxes Equity
lI{la‘;f?tory Tumover Cost of Goods Sold[Average loventory 0.00 - NA Note 5
Teade Receivables Reveaue gaverige Hmde NA NA NA Note 5
Tucnover Ratio Receivables

Purchases of
;;:ide Payable Tumover Services and other |Average Trade Payables 0.07 0.68 -89% Note 6

© Expenses

g:;fap‘“‘l Tumover 1 venue Workiag Capital 0.00 NA NA Note 5
Net Profit Ratio Net Proficafter [ enue ©98)  NA NA Note 5

Taxes
Return on Capital Earning befoce .

C loyed ; . -97% i

Employed Interest and Tax apital Employe (0.00) (0.14) 97% Note
Return on Investment  [1260M€ from Time Weighted average | 0.07 NA Note 5

Investments Investments
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2
3
4
5
6
7

39

41

42

Alf amounts are in ¥ thousands, uniess otherwise srated
Variance is on account of decrease ia borzowings and increase in shareholder fund.
Variance is on account of decrease in earnings before interest and tax & decrease in borrowings.
Variance is on account of decrease in loss after tax & mcrease in shareholder fund,
The ratio is not given in cases wheter either numerator or denominator is not available.
Variance is on account of decrease in purchase of services and other expenses.
Vaance is on account of decrease in capital employed due to decrease in current borrowings.

Audit Trail

As per the Ministey of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification, proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, for the financial
year commencing 1 April 2023, every company which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of accouat, shall use only such
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every tragsacton, creating an edit log of each change made in the
books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled. The interpretation and
guidance on what level edit log and audit trail needs 1o be maintained evolved during the year and contiaues to evolve,

The Company has used accounting sofrwares for maintaining its books of account for the year, which have features of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility at application level as well as database level and the same have beeq operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the softwares except one software where audit teial (edit log) facility at database level was not availabie. Recording of audit trail (edit
fogs) can be disabled using restricted privileged tights for direct data changes at database level. Since the company has other necessary conteols
in place, which are operating effectively, this fearure will not adversely impact its data and audit log retention directly at darabase level.

Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record reteation except that the audit trail
at the database level for the Company has not been preserved in the accounting software for the petiod from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024, as
applicable.

Business Combination of holding company

The Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tebunal, New Delhi Bench ("NCLAT", on 7 January 2025, approved the scheme of
amalgamation of Nam FEstetes Private Limited ("NAM") and Embassy One Commercial Property Developments Private Limited
("EOCPDPL" with Embassy Developments Limited ("EDL") (formerly known as Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls

24 January 2025, thereby giving effect to the scheme {"Effective Date").

Subsequent to the scheme becoming effective, a few of the current NAM shareholders, namely J¥V Holding Private Limited (JVHPL), four
individuals, and two other entities (referred to as the "Promoter/Promoter Group"), became the largest shareholders of the EDL, the
company's holding company.

Leases

The company has leased out 87,120 Square foot of land to Stoaehill Education Foundation, for the purpose of building and operating a school,
with an option to the lessee to buy the said land at no additional consideration. The option to buy the asset is with the lessee and hence this bhas
te be treated as finance lease as per IND AS 116 - Lease. However, school being a project feature it is appropriate to include the land cost in
inventory and charge off the same to P&L in proportion to the Sale of Apartments. Hence for true and fair presentation, the company has not
treated this tcansaction as fipance lease,

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities pursnant 1o Ind AS 7 - Cash flows
The changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Particulars Amonnt (%)
Net debt as at 01 April 2023 27,73,680,73
Proceeds from borcowings 3,41,992.00
Repayment of borrowingg (77,037.50)
Nog-Cash Changes 21,976.76
Net debt as ar 31 March 2024 30,60,611.99
Proceeds from borrowings 7,82,593.16
Repayment of botrowings (4,98,899.60)
Non-Cash Changes (23,63,008.39)
Net debt as at 31 March 2025 9,81,297.16
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43 Other statutocy information:
Revenue related diselosures
A Disaggregation of revenue
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers;

Year ended 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from sale of properties 6,250,00 -
Total revenue covered under Ind AS 115 6,250.00 -

B Contract balances
The following rable provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers:

As at 31 Macech 2025 31 Macch 2024
Contract Labilities

Advance from consumers 20,751.14 19,844.37
Total contract liabilities 20,751.14 19,844.37
Receivables

Trade receivables - -

Total receivables 3

C Significant changes in the conteact liabilities balances during the year are as follows:
Advaaces from consumers

As at 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance 19,844.37 19,844.37
Addition during the year 7,156.77 -
Revenue recognized during the year {6,250.00) -
ClosiEgElance 20,751.14 19,844.37

D Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract revenue:

As at 31 Masch 2025 31 March 2024
Contract revenue 6,250.00 -
Revenne recognised from real estace properties 6,250.00 -

44 Other Statutory Information

() The Company does not have any Beaami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Compaay for holding
Benami property for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

(i} The Company does not have any wansactions with seruck off compantes during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

eaded 31 March 2025 aad 31 March 2024,

any

{v) During the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (latermediaries) with the understandiag that the Intermediary shall ditecdy or indirectly lend or
invest in other persoas or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of ¢he company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any

guacantee, security or the like to or on bebalf of the Ultimare Beneficiaries.

{vi) Dusing the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Compaay shall directy or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or endties identified in any maaner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate

Beneficiacies) or provide any guacantee, security or the fike on behalf of the Uldmate Beneficiaries.
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{ix) The Company does not have any investments/downstream companies. Hence, compliance with number of layeis is not applicable o the
Company.
{x) The Company has not entered into any derivative instrument during the year. The Company does not have any foreign currency exposures
towards receivables, payables or any other derivative instrument that have not been hedged.
xi} In respect of amounts 25 mentioned under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues required to be credited to the
Tnvestor Education and Protection Fund as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

xii) The opinion of the Board of Directors, all curret assets and long term loaas & advaaces, appearing in the balance sheet as at 31 March
2025, have a value on realization, in the ordinary course of the Company’s business, at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the
financial statements. Ia the opinion of the board of divectors, no provision is required to be made against the recoverability of these balances,

xiil} Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever applicable.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co. For aad on bebalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
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